BZA Mlosting Minutes

Board of Zoning Appeals
August 14, 2025

Members present: Phil Rooney, Chairperson; Blaine Wells; Scott Brecheisen; Alex Treece and Shaun Mason.

Phil Rooney called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and the general rules were reviewed.
The following was introduced by Mr. Erik Adkins:

Case Number: BZA-20-2025-66251
Address: 5169 Hamlet Drive
Zone: Light Industrial, 1-1

This request, filed by Ohio Logistics, is for a variance from Section 1161.12.8(F)(2) of the City of
Findlay Zoning Ordinance to install three new industrial directional signage at 5169 Hamlet Drive. The
variance seeks to allow the construction of multiple industrial directional signs with a 10-foot setback,
where a 25-foot setback is required.

Construction of the new industrial building at this location has been completed. To properly facilitate
truck traffic on-site, the property owner is requesting that the proposed industrial directional signage be
treated similarly to regular directional signage and therefore be allowed at a 10-foot setback.

Given that this property is a corner lot—unlike an interior lot, which the existing code language may
have been primarily intended to address—the request is considered compatible with the district.

The city supports this variance request.

Mr. Adkins stated that there is an amendment to the variance request. The applicant is amending the
variance request to have a 2-feet setback instead of the original request of a 10-feet setback.

Mr. Treece asked if the signage is in the same spot as the original request.

Mr. Adkins stated yes. The property line was determined this week which they found out the requested
variance would be for a 2-feet setback instead of the original request of a 10-feet setback.

Ms. Josette Brinkman, owner of Fast Signs of Findlay, 303 East Sandusky Street, Findlay, was sworn
in. She stated they are seeking a setback of 2 feet for the signs at Hamlet Drive. She stated the blacktop
is about 40-foot wide. With the 2-feet setback, it sticks the signs perpendicular to the blacktop. With
all of the truck traffic, if they put the signs at the 10-foot or the 25-feet setback, it would put the signs in
the middle of the driveway.

Mr. Wells asked for confirmation that all of the signs will be up against the blacktop.
Ms. Brinkman stated that is correct.

Mr. Rooney asked Mr. Adkins if there were any communications on this case.



RZA RAazting Ninnios
Mr. Adkins stated there was no communication on this case.

Mr. Wells made a motion to approve the amended requested variance for a 2-feet front setback and all
necessary permits be obtained within 60 days.

Mr. Brecheisen seconded the motion.

Motion to approve the amended requested variance for a 2-feet front setback and all necessary permits
be obtained within 60 days, 4-0 (Mr. Rooney abstained from voting).

The following was introduced by Mr. Erik Adkins:

Case Number: BZA-21-2025-66252
Address: 1009 Blanchard Avenue
Zone: Office/Institutions, O-1

This request, filed by Redeemer Lutheran Church, is for a variance from Section 1161.12.12(4),
1161.12.12(5), and 1161.12.12(6) of the Zoning Ordinance to install a new electronic message center (EMC)
at 1009 Blanchard Avenue. The variance would allow the EMC to replace an existing low-profile channel
letter sign on a property located in the Office/Institution (O-1) zoning district. The proposed EMC does not
comply with the following requirements of the Zoning Ordinance: EMCs are not permitted in the O-1 district;
EMCs must not be located within 300 feet of a residentially zoned property; and EMCs may not exceed 25
percent of the allowable sign area.

The property owner is seeking to replace the existing channel letter message board sign cabinet with an
electronic message center (EMC). However, the Office/Institution (O-1) zoning district does not permit
EMCs.

If the variance is to be approved, two additional considerations must be addressed:

1) Proximity to Residential Zoning: The subject property is surrounded primarily by industrially and
commercially zoned parcels, except for the two parcels directly to the east, which are zoned
residential, the next closest residentially zoned property is approximately 280 feet to the north.

2) Sign Area Allowance: The Zoning Ordinance permits an EMC to comprise no more than 25 percent
of the total allowable sign area. The proposed EMC, however, would make up approximately 75
percent of the sign area.

These factors should be carefully considered in evaluating whether the requested variance meets the intent
of the zoning regulations.

The ity supports conditional approval of the variance request based on recommended conditions designed
to minimize potential impacts on adjacent residential properties. The electronic message center must have
an automatic dimmer and shall be illuminated only between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. to reduce
light disturbance during evening and overnight hours. Additionally, the electronic message center should be
limited to static messages; flashing, scrolling, or video-style displays shall be prohibited to avoid excessive
visual distractions.

Mr. Mason asked which neighbor is the written communication from that is in the packet.



BZA Meating Minuies

Ms. Glennda Stelnicki, 10217 Edgewood Drive, Findlay, President of the Church Council, was sworn in.
She stated she has another letter from another neighbor. (She turned in a copy of the letter which is
attached). She stated the sign is to communicate with the neighborhood and others. She stated the sign that
they have has been there around ten years and it is literally falling apart. The pastor is the one that changes
it, and it is very difficult, especially in the winter. They want an electronic sign to easily change the
message. They will not be doing anything flashy. This will fit in the existing space that is already there.
She stated the height is a little larger, but the width is the same, because they could not find one that was
the exact same size in height.

Mr. Rooney asked if they had a problem with a requirement being that it must shut down after 8 o’clock
and is not illuminating.

Ms. Stelnicki stated they will do whatever the Board tells them to do. They would like it on earlier in the
morning so people going to work will see it; and later at night.

Mr. Wells asked for confirmation that the message will not scroll or flash.
Ms. Stelnicki stated no, it will not.
Mr. Wells asked Mr. Mason if he got the answer about the written communication he asked about earlier.

Ms. Stelnicki stated they got a letter from the neighbors on either side of them. She told the board about
the businesses around the church.

Mr. Joel Davis, 2816 Northgate Boulevard, Findlay, Treasurer of the church, was sworn in. He explained
the estimates they received for the sign; however, they were too expensive, until they found this company.
The sign does have a timer. They have no intensions of anything fancy or flashing.

Mr. Rooney asked Mr. Adkins if there were any communications on this case.

Mr. Adkins stated there was one communication on this case, other than the one in the packet. It was
read into record. The letter was from Kevin Gossard II in favor of the sign (attached).

Mr. Mason stated before he was on this board, he greatly opposed the St. Michael sign on Bright Road
and feels he would be a huge hypocrite if he voted for this.

Mr. Rooney made a motion to approve the requested variance with the condition there is no flashing or
scrolling and the hours of operation is only 7am till 8pm; and all necessary permits be obtained within
60 days.

Mr. Brecheisen seconded the motion.

Motion to approve the requested variance with the condition there is not flashing or scrolling and the
hours of operation are limited to 7am till 8pm; and all necessary permits be obtained within 60 days,

3-2 (Mr. Mason and Mr. Treece opposed).

The following was introduced by Mr. Erik Adkins:

Case Number: BZA-22-2025-66253
Address: 1100 Dalores Drive



XA Riasting Minules
Zone: Condominium, CD

This request, filed by David Brisbin, is for a variance from Section 1127.04(B) for a new addition at
1100 Dalores Drive. The request is to allow a 14-foot by 10-foot addition to the side of the dwelling,
with a setback of 2.3 feet from the side property line, where a minimum setback of 15 feet is required.
The subject property is located within a parcel zoned Condominium District (CD), which is typically
associated with platted condominium developments rather than traditional Small Lot Residential (R-3)
neighborhoods. Nonetheless, even if the property were located in an R-3 district, a variance would still
be required, as the proposed 2.3-foot setback falls short of the minimum 3-foot setback typically
permitted for accessory structures in such zones.

While the City would prefer that at least a 3-foot setback be maintained, it supports the Board’s
discretion in reviewing and making a final determination on the request.

Mr. Colby Ellis, contractor, representing the owner, was sworn in.
Mr. Rooney asked if it is just a covered patio or an enclosed structure.

Mr. Ellis stated that it will not be enclosed, it is just an aluminum-framed patio cover with
approximately a 6-inch overhang.

Mr. Adkins stated it is exactly like the one at Findlay Brewing.

Mr. Mason asked if the posts will be sitting outside the existing concrete.
M. Ellis stated they would sit on the slab.

Mr., Wells asked if the 6-inch overhang is the issue.

Mr. Ellis stated the overhang puts it at the 2 feet 3-inches.

Mr. Rooney asked if the setback is 15 feet.

Mr. Adkins stated yes, a condominium district is a 15-feet side setback. It is surrounded by a bunch of
R3 houses.

Mr. Rooney confirmed that during the re-zoning, they made this a condo district.

Mr. Adkins stated yes.

Mr. Treece asked if this roof is in line with the rest of the building.

Mr. Brecheisen spoke (inaudible).

Mr. Wells asked if it would be sticking out substantially past the existing line of the house.

Mr. Ellis stated yes.

Mr. Rooney asked if they have ever put a condition on one of these where they cannot enclose it.



BZA Mealing Dlinnles
Mr. Adkins stated they should put a condition on it so it cannot be enclosed.
Mr. Mason asked if the gutter downspouts would be closer to the property line.

M. Ellis stated he is not familiar with gutters but generally yes.
Mr. Rooney asked Mr. Adkins if there were any communications on this case.
Mr. Adkins stated there was no communication on this case.

Mr. Wells stated he is struggling with this. It is a significant request. The gutters will make it even
closer to the neighbors with the rainwater runoff,

Mr. Ellis asked if they were to bring the gutters in, would that make a difference?

Mr. Wells stated that it does not solve the magnitude of the variance.

Mr. Wells made a motion to deny the requested variance.

Mr. Mason stated he would be more inclined if there were communications from the neighbors.
Mr. Mason seconded the motion.

Motion to deny the requested variance, 5-0.

The following was introduced by Mr. Erik Adkins:

Case Number: BZA-23-2025-66254
Address: 1925 Tiffin Avenue
Zone: General Commercial, C-2

This request, filed by Isaac Property Company, requests a variance from Section 1161.12.8(B)(1) for
property located at 1925 Tiffin Avenue. The variance would allow the installation of a low-profile sign
with a height of 30 feet, where the ordinance limits such signs to a maximum height of 8 feet.

The property owner is planning to demolish an existing high-rise sign exceeding 40 feet in height. In
its place, they propose constructing a new sign of similar height to the one recently approved for the
adjacent mall property through a previously granted variance. The proposed sign will comply with the
required 10-foot setback from all property lines.

Although the variance request exceeds the height limit by 22 feet, the proposed sign is designed to
enhance the visual appearance of the corridor and improve the overall streetscape along Tiffin Avenue.

The City has reviewed the request and supports approval, as it complements nearby development and
maintains visual consistency within the district.

Mr. Rob Hall, Toledo Sign Company, 2021 Adams Street, Toledo, Ohio, was sworn in. He stated
they propose to update the existing signage. The existing cabinet was not in good working order for
replacing the Ollies sign. The sign photo in the packet is a concept and no design has been agreed



LA WInating Liinales

upon right now. All of the tenants are about 300-500 back from the roadway, so having an § feet sign
would not do them much good, this is why they are requesting the variance.

Mr. Wells stated the current pylon is open; the new sign is solid and would obstruct views.

Mr. Hall stated the pole would be 20 feet back from the sidewalk and about 30 feet back from the curb.
The front edge of the Valvoline sign would be approximately where the front edge of the base of the
sign would be.

Mr. Wells asked if more options have been looked at.
Mr. Hall stated the code requires them to have a monument style base.

Mr. Adkins stated the sidewalks are on the inside of the property line, which is not typical, so the sign
will sit back further. It will not cause an obstruction.

M. Rooney asked Mr. Adkins if there were any communications on this case.

Mr. Adkins stated there was no communication on this case.

Mr. Rooney stated he is all about replacing this sign but would like to see it before it is approved.
Mr. Hall stated it would be very close to the photo in the packet.

Mr. Adkins stated they will have to get structural engineering approvals from Wood County. It is
eliminating sky clutter and beautifying it up a little bit.

Mr. Rooney asked if they could have Hancock Regional Planning approve the final plan and design.

Mr. Adkins stated yes, they can.

Mr. Rooney made a motion to approve the requested variance with the condition that the final plan and
design be approved by Hancock Regional Planning; and all necessary permits be obtained within 60
days.

Mr. Wells seconded the motion.

Motion to approve the requested variance with the condition that the final plan and design be approved
by Hancock Regional Planning; and all necessary permits be obtained within 60 days, 5-0.

The following was introduced by Mr. Erik Adkins:

Case Number: BZA-24-2025-66255
Address: 620 Tiffin Avenue
Zone: Small Lot Residential, R-3

This request, filed by Ed Gatliff, requests a variance from Section 1123.04(C) for a new addition at 620
Tiffin Avenue. The variance seeks to allow a rear yard setback of 4.5 feet, where the ordinance requires



a setback equal to 15 percent of the lot depth or 30 feet, whichever is less. Based on the lot depth, the
required setback is 15.6 feet.

The property owner is proposing to construct an attached garage at the rear of the residence for the secure
storage of a classic vehicle, which has previously been subject to vandalism and break-ins. The requested
variance would provide 11.1 feet of relief from the required rear yard setback. While a detached garage
would require only a 5-foot setback under code, this proposal for an attached structure still falls short of
that threshold.

The City has reviewed the request and supports the Board’s decision, acknowledging the owner's
concerns for security while recognizing the substantial nature of the variance requested.

Mr. Adkins stated he drove by and there was a prior garage there.
Mr. Wells asked if it will be under the lot coverage.
Mr. Adkins stated lot coverage is 50% so it is good

Mr. Ed Gatliff, 620 Tiffin Avenue, and Vinny Cirigliano, 2410 Foxfire Lane, the contractor, were sworn
in,

Mr. Gatliff stated it is currently an eye sore, and there used to be a garage there, at one time. He wants
to build the garage, not only for improvement, but also for safety. He did have a car stolen years ago
and would feel better having his belongings locked up in a garage.

Mr. Cirigliano stated it is a corner lot, on Dayton Avenue and Tiffin Avenue.

Mr. Gatliff stated the garage would be off the back of the house and the drive would be off of Dayton
Avenue.

Mr. Wells asked if the orange tape strung out is the footprint of the building. Will it be covering the
existing concrete pad?

Mr. Gatliff and Mr. Cirigliano stated that is correct.

Mr. Rooney asked Mr. Adkins if there were any communications on this case.

Mr. Adkins stated there was no other communication on this case.

Mr. Gatliff gave Mr. Adkins a copy of the Police Report from the car theft on 2/12/2013 (attached).

Mr. Mason noted there are two communications in the packet of people in support; however, neither of
the two are adjacent to the property.

Mr, Treece made a motion to approve the requested variance with the condition that all necessary
permits be obtained within 60 days.

Mr. Wells seconded the motion.



34 Maeding Sinui

Motion to approve the requested variance with the condition that all necessary permits be obtained
within 60 days, 5-0.

The following was introduced by Mr, Erik Adkins:

Case Number: BZA-25-2025-66256
Address: 640 Second Street
Zone: Small Lot Residential, R-3

This request, filed by Doug Thomas, requests a variance from Section 1123.04(1)(B) for a new fence at
640 Second Street. The variance seeks to allow a front yard setback of 2 feet, where the ordinance
requires a setback equal to the average of the neighboring properties’ front building lines.

The applicant is proposing to construct a fence to provide privacy from a duplex located directly
behind the property. Due to the duplex being set back more than 70 feet from the shared property line,
the averaging method results in a required fence setback of approximately 40 feet. Had the duplex been

constructed with a more typical 10-foot rear setback, the owner would have been able to place the
fence in line with their own building, roughly 10 feet from the front property line.

In addition, the subject property does not have a sidewalk and includes a wide grassy boulevard
between the curb and the property line, which visually softens the impact of a 2-foot setback.

Given these unique site conditions, the City supports the Board’s discretion on this request.
Mr. Wells asked if the setback is on Linden?

Mr. Adkins stated yes.

Mr. Doug Thomas, 640 Second Street, was sworn in.

Mr. Rooney asked if it was off the house toward Linden.

Mr. Thomas stated it would be off the back corner of the house; Linden that it runs along, is actually a
dead end.

Discussion took place about the location of the fence and the location of the future building.
Mr. Rooney asked Mr. Adkins if there were any communications on this case.
Mr. Adkins stated there was no other communication on this case.

Mr. Wells made a motion to approve the requested variance on the condition that all necessary permits
be obtained within 60 days.

Mr. Treece seconded the motion.

Motion to approve the requested variance on the condition that all necessary permits be obtained
within 60 days, 5-0.



The following was introduced by Mr. Erik Adkins:

Case Number: BZA-26-2025-66257
Address: 1880 Tiffin Avenue
Zone: General Commercial, C-2

This request, filed by Sheetz Inc., secks a variance from Sections 1161.12.7 and 1135.04 of the City of
Findlay Zoning Ordinance for a newly constructed building and freestanding sign at 1880 Tiffin Avenue.
The variance requests approval for a rear yard setback of 9.93 feet for the building, where a 10-foot
setback was previously approved by the Board. It also seeks approval for a setback of 8.42 feet for a
freestanding sign along Croy Drive, where the ordinance requires a minimum setback of 10 feet from all
property lines.

An ALTA survey conducted upon completion of the commercial property revealed that the freestanding
sign was installed at 8.42 feet from the Croy Drive right-of-way, falling short of the required 10-foot
setback. The survey also determined that the principal building encroaches slightly into the approved
rear yard setback, with a measured distance of 9.93 feet—0.07 feet closer than the variance approved
prior to construction.

City staff has reviewed the request and supports approval, as the discrepancies are minimal, were
unintentional, and do not negatively affect adjacent properties or compromise the intent of the zoning
code.

Mr. Mike Casale, with Sheetz, was sworn in. He stated it was not intentional.
Mr. Rooney asked Mr. Adkins if there were any communications on this case.

Mr. Adkins stated there was no other communication on this case.

Mr. Rooney made a motion to approve the requested variance on the condition that all necessary
permits be obtained within 60 days.

Mr. Brecheisen seconded the motion.

Motion to approve the requested variance on the condition that all necessary permits be obtained
within 60 days, 5-0.

The June 12, 2025 meeting minutes were approved.

The meeting was adjourned.

- £ oA

\ — | s
—— / ¥, ecreta
L/Ghaman o ry




_&/rjzs

1 PevinQossacdZ .

%};_qy.ﬁ_i)ﬂ_flbj_&c.hané___

toa 1ED 5ig A

/Ca,f

™

i A /
j GQ (\ bl’ (’jj‘\‘) {, }'\\5 ’z{'j { ?\”{Li:ii .



pOLICE

o“t.lh’rcs{ ¥ - u
=) Findlay Police Department
"‘Nl}'i.ﬁq ’
oM summary
Print Date/Time: 07/23/2025 12:43 Findlay Police Department
Login ID: cof\bstimmel ORI Number: OH0320100
Case Number: 2013-00001726
Case
Case Number:  2013-00001726 Incident Type:  Motor Vehicle Theft
Location: ¢ 620 TIFFINAVE ™ Occurred From:  02/12/2013 06:24
" FINDLAY, OH 45840 Occurred Thru:  02/12/2013 06:24
Reporting Officer ID: 238 - Brown Disposition: Clesed Leads Exhausted
Disposition Date: 01/11/2019
Reported Date:  02/12/2013 06:24 Tuesday
Offenses
No. Group/ORI Crime Code Statute Description Counts
1 State 240 2913.02 F5 Theft of Motor Vehicle 1
Subjects
Type No. Name Address Phone Race Sex DOB/Age
Complainant 1 GATLIFF, EBDWARD A - Male
FINDLAY, OH 45840
Victim 1 GATLIFF, EDWARD A ’ Male
FINDLAY, OH 45840
Arrests
Arrest No. Name Address Date/Time Type Age
Property
Date Code Type Make Model Description Tag No. Item No.
02/12/2013 Stolen/Etc. Automobiles Nissan ALTIMA NISS:ALT: 1
Vehicles
No. Role Vehicle Type Year Make Model Color License Plate State
1 Other Vehicle Passenger Car 2006 Nissan ALTIMA Black CH

Page: 10f 3



Initial Report

On February 12, 2013 | was dispatched to 620 Tiffin Ave. for a report of a stolen vehicle.
Upon arrival | spoke with Edward Gatiff who advised he parked his black 2008 Nissan Altima (OH RP

:around 2000 hrs. last night (02/11/2013) in his drive way. Edward advised he left the
Nissan unlocked and his keys in the car. Edward said he was inside all night and did not hear any
commotion outside. Edward stated he went out to his car around 0620 hrs. this moming and it was
gone.

Edward advised the car has a sun roof with a wind deflector and a small dent on the
driver's side front fender which was starting to rust. Edward also stated he believed there was about
three quarters tank of gas in the vehicle. Edward did not know of anyone who may have taken the
vehicle. Edward provided a written statement which is attached. Edward also stated he would
pursue charges if a suspect was discovered.

| had dispatch enter the Nissan into LEADS/NCIC as a stolen vehicle, the LEADS/NCIC
printout is attached. 1 also checked the close area for the Nissan but did not locate it. A copy of the
printout was placed into roll call.

No suspects are known at this time.

Ofcr. Tim Brown 238

Page: 2 of 3



1131726 - Handwritten Stmt-Edward Gatliff

~ AT KR AT e GO e o
NARRATIVE SUPPLEMENT Do T INCICENT HUbHzR
- Edeay Gnrumr SRR *
iVEr‘l"&{ 6 g ‘W - NGIDENT DATE/TIME i
DUARD OATLIFE e e THerr ewnerrmn [ 343 }
T Eowaprr £ Hme L i Gl OF A DA0L pI3SAN K2FrAE SE f
2 ) :
AR EZ  YomE pp  FEB 4l 4T B Soaae SE gy, Wl Tl 3
TP~ I s = y Ty
il JCERE TR A T Amsen G T 23T R RN A ;
g =) = - ezers ' SN
/(K = f’,( LT D Sl TS S 1,5‘/.// e F AL 7/1’ V 3 A 4 e 2
CE TR0 05 IPEEe RIPFIIMN  sarc iy Tl &y Dol S :-ff‘av’ i
5'-/:/\' r?»ﬁt’“ . s N
i _,':’1;-:‘67.4 4 J:;f/f'( j_f‘./’ 5".’{' X ;,/..“M’F: 5 g
,  Supl Eroas” FEAEL .
e e TP it - e e g , P . -
DO %% ind T i G0 PRESE (AR ES g a8 Fo/iss w2 Fa i i
; = 7 b
ZR ’{/f.'e.
i Lincrn oS ofi 27
i 4 ‘
iy Py
o s s /:?J / vl “} “’/; ORI
= :
3
H K
4
3
k s o S e
o
e e - i |
3
i :
i i
}
P ——
H ,
' ;
- i
REASON CLEARED A LEGEATH OF OFFERDER DI VIO REFLUAED T CO0P. B LIARREST - IVENLE STIROSED | OATE ERED ‘
WEIWARRNT SS90 { CUNFOUNCED
1 B mvesT. pENCHG unwmm
BASGE NG, = =3 o M¢
3L 2P 2'5
‘1&.&# DATE 4
] G 7303 H
e —— s cagueane oG g om0 ol B P - =

Page: 3 of 3




